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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
MIAMI DIVISION

COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING
COMMISSION, CIVIL ACTION NO.
01-7402-CI1V-SEITZ/GARBER
Plaintiff,

Vi,

WORLD BANKS FOREIGN CURRENCY
TRADES, INC,, INTERNATIONAL INVESTORS
TRADING GROUP, INC,, DANIEL LEDOUX,

Fl LED by L D.C)

GAVIN LIVOTI, BRYANT CROWDER, ERIN JAN 2 0 2004
VALKO, CHRISTOPHER BOUTCHIE, and ——
FRANK DESANTIS, T Ve S ox

Defendants,
/

CONSENT ORDER OF PERMANENT INJUNCTION
AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF AGAINST DEFENDANTS

FRANK DESANTIS, CHRISTOPHER BOUTCHIE AND ERIN VALKO
Pursuant to the agreement of Defendants irin Valko (“Valko™), Frank [eSantis
("DeSantis”), and Chrstopher Boutchie (*Bowtchie™) (colleclively, “[efendants”) and Plaintiff
Commadity Futures Trading Commission (“the Conmumission™) (callectively relferred to herein as

“Panties™), the Poarties hereby agree to entey of an Order as [ollows:
I. INTRODUCTION

L The Commusston Bled o Complaimt agiinst Delendants secking injunctive and other
cyuitable relicl for vinhitions of the Commuadity Fxchange Act, as amended (the "Act™, 7US.C

§§ 1 erseq. (2001 and regulations promulgated thereonder, 17 CF R §S of veg. (2002),
2. Delendants amswered the Complaint denying lability and asserting various aflirmative

defenses,
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3. To effect settlement of the l;nauers alleged in the Complaint without a trial on the
merits, Defendants, along with the Commission, consent to the entcy of this Consent Order Of
Permanent Injunction And Other Equitable Relief (“"Consent Order™).

4. Defendants also: (1) admit both personal and subjer:t matter jurisdiction of this Court
in this action for all acts arising after December 21, 2000; (2) admit thal venue properly lies with
this Court; and (3) generally waive the entry of findings of fact and conclusions of law in this
aclion pursuant to Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, excepl as provided herein.

5. By conscnting to the entry of this Order, Defendants neither admit nor deny the
allegations of the Complaint and the Findings of Yact containud in this Consenl Order, except as
to jurisdiction and venue.  However, Delendunts agree and intend that the allegations of the
Complaint and all of the Findings of Fact made by this Court and contained hercin shall be laken
as true and correct and be given preclusive effect without further proof for the purpose of uny
subscquent bankruplcy proceeding filed by, or on behalf of. or against Defendant DeSantis
and/or Bouichic and/or Valko. for the purpose of determining whether Defendant DeSantis
und/or Boutchie and/or Valko's restitution obligation and/or other payments ordered herein are
exeepted from discharge. Defendants DeSantis, Houtchiz. and Valke also shall provide
immudinte notice of any bankruptey filed by. or on behatl ol or against any of theon Neither the
eniry ol this Consent Order nor the Findings of Fact contained herein shall be admissible for any
uther prrpose,

6. By s fanguage, Defendants DeSantis, Boutehie, imd Valko agree they shall not take
any action or nuake any public statements denying, dircetly or indirectty, any allegation i the
Complaint og creating, or tending to create, the impression that the Complaint is without factual

hasis: provided. however, thal nothing in this pravision aflcets Detendants DeSantis” and/or
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Boutchie’s and/or Valko’s (3) testimonial obligations, or (ii) their right to take legal positions in
other proceedings to which the Commission is not a party.

7. Defendants waive: (1) all claims that any of them may possess under the Equal Access
to Justice Act (“EAJA™), 5 U.S.C. § 504 (1994) and 28 U.S.C. § 2412 (1994), as amended by
Pub. L. No. 104-121, §§ 23!-32, 110 Stat. 862-63, and Part 148 of the Commission's
Regulations, 17 C.F.R. §§ ]‘48.1, et seq. (2002), relating to or anising from this aclion and any
right under EAJA to seek costs, fees and other expenses relating to or arising from this
proceeding; (2) any claim of Double Jeopardy based upon the institution of this procecding or
the entry in this proceeding ol any order imposing a ¢ivil menetary penalty or any other relief;
and (3) al! rights ol appeal from this Consent Order.

8.  The parties hereto also consent to the continued jurisdiction of the Count for the
purposc of enforcing the terms and conditions of this Consent Order and for any other purposcs
relevant 1o this case.

9. Defendants further affirm that they have read the Conscent Order and apree lo entry of
this Consent Order voluntarily, and that no promise or threat of any kind have been made by the
Commission or any mcember, officer, agent or representative thereol, or by any other person. to
induce any of them ta consent to this Consent Order, other v as set Torth specilically herein,

1. “Phe Court, being fully advised in the premises, hinds that there is good cause for the
entry of this Consent Order and that there is no Just reason to delay. The Coun therelore directs
the entry of findings ol fact, conclusions o law, a permanent injunction snd ancillary equitable

refict, pursnant 1o Scetion be of the Act, 7 U800 § 13a-1 (2001), ax set forth herein.

‘ad
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II. PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

11, On August 23, 2001, the Commission filed its original three-count Complaint in this
action alleging that Defendants World Banks Foreign Currency Traders, Inc. (“"World Banks”),
International Investors Trading Group, Inc. ("HTG"), Gavin Livoti (“Livoti”), Daniel Ledoux
(*Ledoux™), and Brysnt Crowder (“Crowder”) fraudulently telemarketed foreign currency
options contracts 10 individuals in the Uniled States and Canada in violation of the Commodity
Exchange Act (the "Act”), as amended by the Commodity Futures Modermization Act of 2000
(“CIFMA™), Pub. 1.. 106-554, 114 StaL. 2763 (2000).' Specifically, the Commission alleged that
Defendants viululcd_ the Act and Commission regulations by offering and scling illegal forcign
currency oplions contracts, failing 1o make proper disclosures, and engaging in fraud in
connection with the offer and sale of options contracts.

12. On Aupust 24, 200]. the Court pranied the Commission’s ex purte motion for a
statutory restraining order against Defendants World Banks, TG, Ledoux, Livoti, and Crowder,
[reezing their assets, prohibiting them from destroying records, requiring them to provide the
Conmumission with a tull accounting of funds and allowing the Commission to inspeet and copy
Delendants” records.

13, On September 7, 2001, the Court held a heanong on the Commission™s motion for
preluminary injunction. Defendants Ledoux and Livoti consented to the entry of & preliminary
ijunction. Defendants World Banks, ITFG, and Crowder Biiled 10 appear.”  As a result, the

Court prelimmanly enjoined World Banks, TG, Vedoux, Livot, and Crowder from violing

" On December 21, 2000, Congress enacted the CFMA 1o clarify the jurisdiction of the

[Commission] vver certain retail Toreign exchange transactions and Hucket shops that may not othenwise
be regnbted.” CHTC v Meragaxh, 278 F 40 119,120 (4™ Cir, 2007) (puding CFMA § 2(5). Pub. 1. N
106-554 114 Stat. 2763 {2000)).
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the Act, from directly or indirectly soliciting or accepting new customers or deposits for
commodities futures or options contracts, and continued enforcement of the Court’s August 24,
2001 Order freezing Defendants’ assets and requiring an accounting.

14, Thereafter, on March 7, 2002, the Commission filed a First Amended Complaint,
adding Defendants Valko, Boutchie, and DcSantis to this action. Specifically, the Commission
claims in Count [I of the First Amended Complaint that Valko offered and sold commodity
options not conducted on a board of trade designated by the Cemmission as a contract markel in
violation of 7 U.S.C. § 6c(b)’ and 17 C.FR. §§ 32.11 and 33.3(a). The Commission also

charged Boutchic and DeSantis in Counts 1 through 1T with controlling person liability under 7

US.C. § 6¢(b) tor fraud, the offer and sale of commadily oplions not conducted on a board of

trade designated by the Commission as a contracl market, and lailure to make proper diselosures.

15, On April 29, 2002, the Clerk entered defauhs against Defendants World Banks, TG,
and Crowder lor failure to appear, answer or otherwise plead. See |DIE-54).

16.  On December 26, 2002, the Clerk entered default agzinst Defendant Ledoux. See [DE-
B3].

17 On May 14. 2003, the Commission moved for Linal defaull judgment against

Defendants World Banks, TG, Crowder, and Ledoux.

“Fhe Commissinn conlirmed that World Biuks amd TG received notice of the hewing, The Commission
sho voslinned that Crowder could not be found and e nol reported ta is probation officer since fune ol 2001
See D123
TS § beth) provides:
No person shall afler 1o enter s, enter inte or confinm the execution of, any transaction
mvalving ity commuodity regutited under this chapter which is of the character of, or s
commonly known to the rade as, an “option™, “privilepe.” “indemnity,” Chid”, Toller”, Tput”,
Teall” Tadvimee guaranty™, or “dechine gusranty” conlnnry to any rale, regualation, or order of the
[Commission prohibiting any such transaction or allowirg any such iensachon ander such terms
and conditivny as the {Commission] shall preseribe. Aty aach order. rule, or regulation may be
made only afler notice and vpportunity Bir hearing . and the [Commission} may set different terms
and conditions for dilferent markets
TUN.C by,
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18.  The Commission also moved for partial summary judgment as to lability of
Defendants Valko, DeSantis, Boulchie, and Livoti. Defendants Valko, DeSantis, and Boutchie
responded to the Commission’s motion and filed a cross-motion for partial summary judgment.

19.  On August 15, 2003, the Court entered an Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment as to Liability of Defendants Christophur Boutchic and Gavin Livoti and
Denying Plaintiff's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment as to Liability of Defendants Lrin
Valko and Frank DeSantis and Denying Defendants’ Cross-Motion for Panial Summary
Judgment,

I1I. FINDINGS OF FACT

A. Partiey

20, Plaintiff Commaodity Futures Trading Commission is an independent fuderal regulatory
agency charged with the responsibility for administering and enforcing the provisions of the Act
and Regulations promulgated under it

21, Frank DeSuntis is an individual residing at 2410 NE 31 Court, Lighthouse Point,
Florida, 3306064, DeSantis has been regisiered with the Commission in various capacities since
1997,

23, Chrstopher Boutchie is an mdividunl residing at 7502 SW 7" Court. IPompane Beach,
Florida 33068, Boutchic has never heen registered with the Commission in any capacity.

21 Enn Valke is an individual residing ot 2410 NE 31 Court, Lighthouse Paint, Florida,

33064, Yalko has been registered with the Commission as a principial of Tnlcrational Investors

Corporation since May 2001,
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B. World Banks and {ITG

24, From June 2000 to approximately March 2601, World Banks and 1ITG sold foreign
currency options contracts to customers in the United States and Canada.

25, As part of their telemarketing operation, World Banks and IITG telemarketers urged
prospective customers to purchase options in Eurodollars or the Japanese Yen in order to
capilalize on markets that Defendants represented would move dramatically.

26.  The Commission has never designated World Banks or 1ITG as conlract markets for
the salc of forcign currcncey options or any other commodities.

C. Individual Defendants
i Boutchie

27.  Boutchice incorporated World Banks and TG and served as director and officer of
both corparatiens.

28.  Boutchie held himself oul to be the owner and president of World Banks and TG, and
managed the daily operations of both corporations.

29 Amang his numcrous responsibilitics. Boutchie hired employces. supervised and
truined telemarketers, prepared corporate brochures, and reviewed the forcign currency oplions
trides sold to World Banks and 'FG custonmers.

0. In January 2001, having become aware of the new changes in the CEMA, Boutchiv
informed World Banks telemarketers thot the company wits Loing 1o have to cease operations.

31 Boutchic admits that World Banks did nat completely suspend all business operations
untd) Foebruary 2001,

320 From the time World Banks was formed in June 2000 untit approxinimely Februiry

2001, Boutehic was aware that World Banks was engaged in the sale of loreign currency options.
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Boutchie testified that he paid the monthly rent for the leasehold, and signed the checks on
behalf of the company.
i DeSantis

33.  DeSantis served as a consultant for World Banks through his work at International
Investments Holdings Corp. (*/IHC™), a separate corporate entity.

34 In July of 2000, DeSantis, signing as “President of 1HHC." entered into a wriiten
agreement with World Banks to assist in, among other things, performing cashiering functions,
maintaining copics of all accounts, and delivering daily account status reports o World Banks
including trade confirmatinns, open positions, aceount balances, and commission churges.

35. DeSantis knew at all times that World Hanks and TG solicited and sold foreign
currency oplions 1o customers.  DeSanltis had authority over various management functions at
World Banks.

iii, Valko

36.  Valko served as the sole officer. dircctor, owner and cmployee of Compliance and
Customer Care ("CCC™), a separale corporate cntity which provided bookkeeping and
compliance services for World Banks, and bricfly provided camplianee work Tor TG,

37 In particular, Valke would receive customers” “tickers™ and conlinm that the customers
gave their penmission to make the transaction.

3. Valko would tape record the conversation with the customer and then c-mail or call
HC o inform HHC shout the ticket,

19 Valko was atso responsible tor performing dask entry functions and making sure tht

Woeld Banks Iollowed 1heir complizmer policies.
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40.  Valko knew at all times that World Banks and IITG solicited and sold foreign currency
options {o customers.

IV. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

41.  The aforementioned actions of Defendants Boutchie, DeSantis, and Valko, which took
place after December 21, 2000, constituted violations of Section 4c(b) of the Commodity
Exchange Act , 7 U.S.C. § 6¢(b), and the Commission Regulations 32.11 and 33 3(a), 17 CFR.
32.11, 33.3(a) where Dcfendants Boutchie, DeSantis, and Valko offcred to enter into, entered
into, excculed, confirmed the cxecution of, or conducted business for the purpose of soliciting,
accepling any order for, or otherwise dealing in uny transaction in, or in connection with, a
commodily option when: (a) such transactions have not been vonducted on or subject to the
rules of a board of trade which has heen designated by the Commission as a “contract market”
for such commodity, and (b) such contracts have not becn cxecuted or consummated by or
through a member of such contract market.

42, Since December 21, 2000, World Banks, IFTG and tse World Banks tclemarketers, in
or in connection with an offer 1o cnter into, the entry into, or the confirmation of the execution

of. commuodity option transactions, have cheated, defrauded or deceived, or attempied ta cheat,

defrand, or deccive uther persons by making lalse, deceptive, or misleading representations of

material facts and by lailing 1o discloxe material facts, in soliciting customers oF potential
cistomersinelading, but not fimited 10
(a) False representations that customers will reap sulstanial profits in ashort period;

(h) false representations that the: World Banks Common Enlerprise  investment
scheme involves dittle or no nsk; and

() taiture to disclose the effeat of commissions and fees on the potential to profit in
the context of elaims that a customer will reap substantial profi.
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43.  Each misrcpresentation, omission and willful dcception made since December 21,
2000, 1s a separate and distinct violation of Section 4c{b} and! Commission Regulation 32.9.

44.  Boutchie, directly or indirectly, controlled World Banks and 11TG and did not act in
zood faith, or knewingly induced, directly or indirectly, the acts constituting these violations of
Section 4c(b) of the Act, and Commission Regulation 32.9. Boulchie is therefore liable for these
violations by operation of Section 13(b) of the Act, 7 U S.C, § 13c(b).

45.  DecSantis, dircetly or indirectly, controlied World 13anks and did not act in good faith,
or knowingly induced, dircetly or indircetly, the acts constituting these violations of Section
4c(b) ol the Act, and Commission Regulaton 329 DeSantis s therefore liable for these
violations by operation of Section 13(b) of the Act, 7U.S.C. 5 13¢b).

V. ORDER FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION
Based upon the foregoing findings of fact and conclusions of law and the consent of the
Parties, 1t is ORDERED AND ADJUDGED 1hat:

46.  Decfendants DeSantis, Boutchie, and Valko are permanently restrained, crjoined and
prohibited [rom directly or indirectly:

. In or in connection with an ofler to enter into, the entry into, or the
confirmation of the exceution of, any commadity oplion tansactions: (1)
cheating or defranding or atiempting te cheat or delraud any persons: und
(2) deceiving or attempting to deceive any person, in violation of Section
4eih) ol the Act and Connmission Repulation 32.9;

b. Offering to enler into, eotering info, cxecuting, conlirming the execulion
of, or conducting husiness far the Mirpose o soliciling, accepling any

order for, vr utherwise dealing in any lansaction i, or in conncebon with,

10
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a commodity option when: (1) such transactions have not been conducted
on or subject to the rules of a board of trade which has been designated by
the Commission as a “contract market” for such commodity; and (2) such
contracts have not been executed or consummated by or through a
member of su:l:h contract market, in violation of Section 47c(b) of the Act,
and Commission Regulations 32.11 and 33.3(a);

Soliciting, receiving, or accepling anv funds in connection with the
purchase or sale of any commodity futurcs contract or any option on a
futures contracl;

Controlling  or directing the trading of any commuodity fulures or
commodity options account for or on bchall of any person or entity,
dircctly or indirectly, whether by power nf attorney or otherwise;

Applying for tegistration or claiming ex:mption from registration with the
Commission in any capacily, and engaping in any activily requiring such
registration or cxemption from registration, except as provided for in
Cammission Regulation 4.14{(a}9). 17 CFRC§ 414 ). or achng as o
principal, agent. officer or employee of any person registered. exempted
from registrabion or pequired to he registesed witl the Commission, unless
such exemption is pursuant o Commission Regubaiton 4. 130(9). and
Trading on or subject to the rules of any registered enbity. as thit tery s

detined in Scetion 10(29) of the Act, 71TLES.CL§ 1a(29).

47, The ajunctive provisions of this Conxent Order shall be binding upon Delendants

DeSants, Boutchie, and Valko, upon any person insolar as he or she is acting in the capacity of
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officer, agent, servant or employee of Defendant DeSantis and/or Boutchie and/or Valko, and
upon any person who receives actual notice of this Consent Order, by personal service or

otherwise, insofar as he or she is acting in active concert or panticipation with DeSantis and/or

Boutchie and/or Valko.

YI. ORDER FOR OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF

I'TIS FURTHER ORDERED THAT:
48.  RESTITUTION: A total of $600,000.00 in restitution is hereby ordered.  Defendant
DeSantis shall pay a total of $300,000.00 in restitution 1o customers and Defendant Boutchie
shall puy a total of $300,600.00 in restitution to customers.

49 PAYMENT OF RESTITUTION: Payment of restitulion shal! be made as follows:

a Within 180 calendar days after entry of this Consent Order,
I. Defendant DeSantis shall pay the amaunt of $130,000.00.

(1) Payment shall he made by clectronic Tunds transfer, 11 S, postal
maney order, certified check, bank cashiers check, or bank money
order.

O1) Payment shadl be made 1o Danict A, Driscoll. sy, Exveutive
Vice President, Chicf Campliasice Officer. or his suceessor, al the
following address: Nationad Futures . Association, 200 West
Madison Street, Chicago. Winuis 60606, who shall distribute the

finuds o the investors as deseribed in subsection (¢) below,

h. Within 1wo (2) years alter entry ol this Consent Order,
i. Detendant BeSantis shall pay the amomt of $170.000.00
12

Scanned Image - 0:01CV7402 Document 127 page 12 Wad Jap 21 00:00:00 2004

AN 23 2RRA 141739 R TS 7074 PRk 13




01/23/04 15:31 FAX 305 536 7274 FAX BACK @o14

CIVIL ACTION NO.
01-7402-CIV-SEITZ/GARBER

(i) Payment shall be made by electronic funds transfer, U.S. postal

money order, certified check, bark cashiers check, or bank money

order.
c. Within ten (10) calendar years after entry of this Consent Order,
1. Defendant Bouichie shall pay the entire amount of $300,000.00.

(i) Until the $300,000 is paid in full, Boutchie shall make equal
payments, including 6% intcrest, beginning six (6) months fromn
the date of this Order and contipuing cvery six (6) months
thereafter.
(i1) In the event that Boutchie makes full payment within two (2)
calendar years of this Order, inierest payments shall be credited
toward the principal amount of $300,000.
{11} Payments shall be made by clectronic funds transfer, or hy
U).8. postal money order, certifivd check. bank cashiers check. or
bank money order. made payable to the Commodity Fulures
Trading Commission, and sent o Dennese Posey, Division of
Enforcement, Commaodity Futwres Trading Commission, Three
lafayelte Centee, 1155 21Y Street, NW Washington, 13.C. 20581,
under cover of a leiter that identifies Defendant Boutchie, as well
as the name and docket number of the procecding.

d. The National Futures Associabon shall bhe designated as the Monitor for a

period boeginning with the date of entry of this Consent Order and

- continuing until distribution of the last payment called Tor by this Consenl
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Order. As Monitor, the National Futures Association shall distribute
restitution payments according to the percentapge interests set forth in
Attachment A. The Commission will provide the National Futures
Association with the addresses of these individuals.

VH. MISCELLANEOUS PROYISIONS

50. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND AMENDMENTS: This Consent Order incorporates all

of the terms and conditions of the settlement among the partics hereto. Nothing shall serve to
amend or modify this Consent Order in any respeet whatsocver, unless: (1) reduced 1o writing;
(2) signed by all punties bereto; and (3) approved by order of this Court.

5I. WAIVER: ‘the failure of any party hereto at any lime or imes to require performance
of any provision hereof shall in no manner affect the right of such party at a later time to enforce
the same or any other provision of this Consent Order. No waiver in one or morce instances of
the hreach of any provision contained in this Consent Order shall he deemed 10 be or construed
as a further or continuing waiver of such breach or waiver of the breach of any other provision of
this Consent Order.

52 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: This Consent Order shall inure to the benefit of and

be binding upon the successors. assigns, heirs, beneficiaries and ahministrators of the partics

hereto,

4
i

ACKNOWIEDGEMENTS:  Upon being served will copics of this Consent Order

aficr entry by the Copurt, Defendants DeSantis, Boutchic and Vatko shall sign acknowledpements
af such service and serve such acknowledgments on this Court and the Commission within seven

£ 7) calendar days,
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54.

INVALIDATION: If any provision of this Consent Order, or the application of any
provisions or circumstances is held invalid, the remainder of the Consent Order and the
application of the provision to any other person or circumstance shall not be effected by the

holding.

55. JURISDICTION: This Court shall retain Jurisdiction of this cause to assure

tompliance with this Consent Order and for all other purpose: related 1o this action.

f.lv
ENTERED THIS A0 of , 2004,

Hon, Patricia A
United Siates Dl\l]’l(.l Count

1155 21 Strect, NW

Washinglon. DC 20581
Phone (202) 414-5306
Fax  (202)418-5523
Enmanl: imulreanyeite. g

ank YeNantis

N LLQ

Delembant Inn Valkoe

Detendam I+

Defendant Christopher Boutchie : ‘
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HOMER & BONNER, P.A,
Attorneys for Valko and DeSantis
3400 Bank of America Tower
100 S_E. Second Street

Miami, Florida 33131

50-5100
79-0918

. Lawrence Bonner
Florida Bar No. 304328

ALLRED. BACON, HALFHILL & YOUNG, PC
Attarneys for Boutchic

11350 Random Hills Road, Suite 700

Fairlux, Virginia 22030

Telephone No,: (703) 352-1300

Facsimile No.; (703) 352-13())

By:

Stephen D. Halfhill
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54, INVALIDATION: If any provision of this Consent Order, or the application of any

provisions of tircumsiances fs held invelid, the remainder of the Consent Order and the

application of the provision lo any other person or circumstznce thall not be effected by the

holding,

8. SDICTION: Thiz Court shell iclain junsdjction of this causs to atsure

compliance with this Consent Order and for all other proposes telated to this action.

ENTERED THIS __ of , 2004

Consented to end approved for canry by:

Tirmothy Mulrcany, Aftarney for the Plantiff
U. 3. Commodiry Fumtes Trading Commission
1155 21" Sweet, NW

Washington, DC 20581

Phone (302) 418-5106

Fax  (202) 418-5523

Email: tmubrcany@cfie.gov

Dcfendont Frank DeSanbs

Defendant Enp Vylko

(LK

Defcndant Christopher Boutchie

Hon. Patricia AL Seirz
Vsated Stares District Connt

u/ﬂﬁ
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HOMER & BONNER, P.A,
Attorneys for Valke and DeSantis
3400 Bank of Asperica Tower
100 S E. Second Street

Miami, Florida 33131
Telephone: (305) 350-5100
Telecopier: (305) 379-0918

By:

R. Lawrence Bonner

Florida Bar No. 304328

ALLRED, BACON, HALFHILL & YOUNG, PC
Attorncys for Boutchic
11350 Random Hills Road, Suite 700
Fairfex, Virginia 22030
. 352-1300
733 3152-1301
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